
    

 
 
506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                      PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                  FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

October 21, 2021 
6:00PM 

 
I. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:  

 
II. ROLL CALL:   

 
III. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Approve regular Planning and Zoning 

Board meeting minutes from August 19, 2021.  
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS:  None 
 

V. NEW BUSINESS:   
 

A. School Board of Lake County Rezoning (Alternate Keys: 1639743) 
 
Application submitted by the School Board of Lake County (Diane S. Kornegay, 
Lake County Schools Superintendent) to re-zone approximately 19 acres from R-1, 
Single Family Low Density Residential to PFD, Public Facilities District.  The School 
Board is seeking to construct and replace an elementary school and accessory uses on 
areas located on the northeast corner of the intersection of Urick Street and Olive 
Avenue. The rezoning to PFD is required in order to allow  
 
Kelly Randall, Supervisor of Growth Planning for the School Board was present to 
discuss the new elementary school construction project.   To date, an architect has not 
been selected (anticipated in the Spring); thereafter, civil, structural and utility 
engineers will be hired for the design process.  Questions regarding utilities, school 
entrance, transportation, traffic cannot be addressed until the aforementioned along 
with the construction manager are hired.   
 
 
 

 Board Members:              Others:  
Al Goldberg, Chairman             Tracy Kelley, CDD                                                  
Daniel Dicus, Vice Chair                                Sharon Williams, Administrative Assistant 
Carlisle Burch               
Fred Collins                                                     
Walter Birriel 

 
 

 



    
P&Z Agenda Continued 
Page 2 of 3 
 

Construction is anticipated to commence early 2023 with school opening in the Fall 
(August)  of 2024.  Maximum ISR of 70%, 15’ landscape buffers and parking spaces 
to meet LDR requirements added to plan.    
 
Various design aspects/accessibility were discussed for consideration.  School Board 
anticipating presenting detailed site plan for courtesy review in 2022.    
 

B. 7-Eleven Major Site Plan (Alternate Key: 2748770): 
 

A Major Site Plan application submitted by William “Bill” Lloyd (441 Lake Ella, 
LLC) on behalf of Fruitland Lake Ella, LLC. Parcel currently zoned General 
Commercial (C-2). Applicant proposing development of a 4,650 sf 7-Eleven gas 
station and convenience store at the intersection of Eagle’s Nest Road and US HWY 
27. Applicant also proposing a 996 sf car wash on property.   

 
Conditions/Considerations for approval:  
 

• Engineering recommends conditional approval provided the applicant 
coordinate with Lake County Fire to provide needed fire protection prior to 
beginning construction. 

 
• Lake County Fire - water supply approval conditions and suggestions: 

 
o Since the current hydrants do not provide enough water, a sprinkler 

system for the building would allow for a 75% reduction in the needed 
fire flow. 

 
o It would also be in the applicant’s interest not to connect the canopy to 

the store. If they do connect it, they would have to sprinkle the canopy 
as well. 

 
• Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall resolve, to the 

satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the following matters: 
o Applicant must obtain a driveway permit from FDOT for connection of 

the Property to US Hwy 27/441. 
o Applicant must dedicate and convey by right-of-way deed to Lake 

County right-of-way for Lake Ella Road. Applicant must prepare and 
provide to Lake County the legal description and sketch of description 
of the right-of-way as determined by Lake County, along with a copy of 
the Property boundary survey and title report. 

o Applicant must cooperate with FDOT and Lake County for the traffic 
signal modification at the intersection of US Hwy 27/441 and Lake Ella 
Road, and execute any required agreements relating to same. 

 
 



    
P&Z Agenda Continued 
Page 3 of 3 

 

• Site plan approval shall terminate and become null and void automatically 
without notice if construction has not commenced within twelve (12) months 
from the date of this conditioned approval. 

 
Staff recommends approval in consideration of the aforementioned. 

 
BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
This section is reserved for members of the public to bring up matters of concern or opportunities 
for praise.  Note: Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114 and the City of Fruitland Park’s Public Participation 
Policy adopted by Resolution 2013-023, members of the public shall be given a reasonable 
opportunity to be heard on propositions before the Planning and Zoning Board. Pursuant to 
Resolution 2013-023, public comments are limited to three minutes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  



    

 
 
506 WEST BERCKMAN STREET                                                      PHONE: 352 360-6727                                                                            
FRUITLAND PARK, FL 34731                                                                  FAX: 352 360-6652  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

AUGUST MINUTES 
PLANNING & ZONING BOARD 

August 19, 2021 
6:00PM 

 
I. INVOCATION AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: Invocation and Pledge of 

Allegiance lead by Sharon Williams, Assistant to the Director. 
 

II. ROLL CALL:  All Board Members present (except Board Member Carlisle Burch with 
excused absence); LPG Michael Rankin; City Attorney Anita Geraci-Carver;   Staff: 
CDD Dwayne Williams and Assistant to the Director Sharon Williams.  Present on behalf 
of the applicant, Mirror Lake Phase II proposed development, were:  Adilia Richemond, 
Isaiah Cottle and David Gritton of GSL Holdings I LLC and Dustin Brinkman of KPM 
Franklin.  Also present was Danny Bass, City Building Official.    
 

III. MINUTES FROM PREVIOUS MEETING: Planning and Zoning Board meeting 
minutes from May 20, 2021 were approved.  
 

IV. OLD BUSINESS:  None  
    

V.      NEW BUSINESS: 
 

A.  Mirror Lake Phase II – Preliminary Subdivision Plan (Alternate Key: 3897102)    
       

 Preliminary Subdivision Plan submitted by GSL Holdings on behalf of Fruitland Park 
LLC.  Property is currently zoned PUD.  The preliminary plan is for development of 
Phase II of Mirror Lake.  Phase II consists of 76 units with an average lot size of 43’ 
x 145’ (6,235 SF).  The total number of units after construction of Phase II will be 
166 units which is consistent with the PUD Ordinance (2014-024).   

 
 LPG Rankin introduced application, providing a general overview of the submittal.  
 
 
  

 Board Members:              Others:  
Al Goldberg, Chairman             Dwayne Williams, CDD                                                  
Daniel Dicus, Vice Chair                                Sharon Williams, Administrative Assistant 
Carlisle Burch               
Fred Collins                                                     
Walter Birriel 

 
 

 



    
 
P&Z Minutes Continued 
Page 2 of 2 

 
   

Discussion ensued regarding potential remedies to address the issue of the stormwater 
pond overflow.  Consistent overflow is causing further erosion conditions/concerns.   
 
Dustin Brinkman of  KPMG Franklin stated the goal is to fill the spreader swale and 
investigate solutions which could potentially help with the diversion of water; to 
include  recommendation of erosion control measures.  He suggested continued 
monitoring of storm events after construction onset.    
 
Board Member Dicus stated that he would like to have guarantee of no future 
overflow issues; with the desired outcome to see the problem resolved ‘now’ vice 
later.  Board Member Dicus further stated that continued monitoring (vice taking 
action for viable resolution) is undesirable. He emphasized that inherent with the 
Phase II proposed development is the responsibility to resolve the stormwater 
overflow issue caused by the initial development. 

 
P&Z Board requested that applicant schedule workshop to address viable remedy to 
address the stormwater issue. Outstanding issues pertaining to the stormwater pond 
will need to be rectified before actual construction of homes in Phase II proposed 
development. 
 
Staff recommends approval of the preliminary subdivision plan for Mirror Lake 
Phase II.   P&Z board voted 4-0 to approve the aforementioned plan with conditions 
to resolve the stormwater issue prior to construction. 
 

B.  Property Rights Element 
 

Effective July 1, 2021, the Florida state legislature enacted into law, House Bill 59,  to 
protect personal property rights of homeowners.  Each municipality is required to adopt a 
Property Rights Element and incorporate into its comprehensive plan.  The Property 
Rights Element presented has been approved by City Attorney and is presented for P&Z 
approval  for  recommended adoption by City Commission.     
 
CDD Williams introduced policies presented  to address the Property Rights element of 
the aforementioned to be included in the city’s Comprehensive Plan.   
 
City Attorney further clarified that the state’s intent is to ensure that local government 
takes the rights of property owners into consideration when reviewing land use 
applications.     
 
Staff recommends approval of the Property Rights Element for adoption by Commission 
into the City of Fruitland Park’s 2035 Comprehensive Plan.  P&Z Board Approved 4-0. 
 

BOARD MEMBERS’ COMMENTS: 
 
 
 



    
P&Z Agenda Continued 
Page 2 of 2 
 
PUBLIC COMMENTS: 
This section is reserved for members of the public to bring up matters of concern or opportunities  
for praise.  Note: Pursuant to F.S. 286.0114 and the City of Fruitland Park’s Public Participation 
Policy adopted by Resolution 2013-023, members of the public shall be given a reasonable 
opportunity to be heard on propositions before the Planning and Zoning Board. Pursuant to 
Resolution 2013-023, public comments are limited to three minutes. 
 
ADJOURNMENT:  Meeting Adjourned at 6:32PM 

























Legal Description: 

From the SW corner of the SE 1/4 of Section 9, Township 19 South, Range 24 East, Lake 
County, Florida, run North 0°35’00” East along the West line of the SE 1/4 a distance of 
1029.53 feet, Thence South 89°28’30” East 26.51 feet to the SW corner of Lot 5, Block 
43, Town of Fruitland Park, Florida, and the Point of Beginning of this Description; Run 
Thence North 0°18’20” East885.44 feet, Thence South 89°51’30” East 941.02 feet, 
Thence South 30°16’00” East 298.55 feet, Thence North 89°51’30” West 125.60 feet, 
Thence South 0°30’10” West 634.41 feet, Thence North 89°28’30” West 965.10 feet to 
the POB, containing 20.00 acres. (ORB584, PG 477) 

LESS 

From the SW corner of the SE 1/4 of Section 9, Township 19 South, Range 24 East, Lake 
County, Florida, run North 0°35’00” East along the West line of the SE 1/4 a distance of 
1029.53 feet, Thence South 89°28’30” East 26.51 feet to the SW corner of Lot 5, Block 
43, Town of Fruitland Park, Florida, Thence North 0°18’20” East 760.44 feet to the POB 
of this Description; Run Thence North 0°18’20” East 125.00 feet, Thence South 89°51’30” 
East 250 feet along the South line of Mirror Lake Manor as recorded PB 23, PG 51 of 
Public Records of Lake County, Florida; Then South 00°08’30” West 125.00 feet, Thence 
North 89°51’30” West 250 feet to the POB. (ORB 5139, PG 2470) 

ALSO LESS 

Fruitland Park from SW corner of Lot 5, Block 43 run North 885.44 feet, South 89°51’30” 
East 250 feet to POB, Continue on same line 100 feet, South 00°08’30” West 125 feet, 
North 89°51’30” West 100 feet, North 00°08’30” East 125 feet to POB PB 3 PGS 8-9. 
(Lake County Property Appraiser) 

 





Aerial Map

Lake County  Property Appraiser
Lake BCC

pointLayer

Override 1

polygonLayer
Override 1
Street Names

Local Streets
Property Name
County Boundary
Water Bodies

August 26, 2021
0 0.1 0.20.05 mi

0 0.2 0.40.1 km

1:7,500

Lake County  Board of County Commissioners
 















 
 

ORDINANCE 2021-xx  
 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK, 
REZONING APPROXIMATELY 18.99 ± ACRES OF PROPERTY LOCATED ON OLIVE 
AVENUE, FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA FROM CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK R-1 
ZONING TO THE CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK DESIGNATION OF PUBLIC 
FACILITIES DISTRICT WITHIN THE CITY LIMITS OF FRUITLAND PARK; 
DIRECTING THE CITY MANAGER TO AMEND THE ZONING MAP OF THE CITY OF 
FRUITLAND PARK; PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY; REPEALING ALL 
ORDINANCES IN CONFLICT HEREWITH; PROVIDING FOR SCRIVENER’S 
ERRORS AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 
WHEREAS, a petition has been submitted by the School Board of Lake County as 
applicant/owner requesting that approximately 18.99 acres of real property located on Olive 
Avenue (the “Property”) be rezoned from City of Fruitland Park R-1 to City of Fruitland Park 
Public Facilities District; and  
 
WHEREAS, the property has a future land use designation of Single-Family Low Density as 
shown on the City of Fruitland Park Comprehensive Plan Future Land Use Map; and 
 
WHEREAS, the proposed zoning is consistent with the future land use designation; and 
 
WHEREAS, the petition bears the signature of all applicable parties; and  
 
WHEREAS, the required notice of the proposed rezoning has been properly published; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission reviewed said petition, the recommendations of the Planning 
and Zoning Board, staff report and any comments, favorable or unfavorable, from the public and 
surrounding property owners at a public hearing duly advertised; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Commission of the City of Fruitland 
Park, Florida, as follows: 
 
Section 1.  The following described property consisting of approximately 18.99 + acres of land 
located on Olive Avenue, Fruitland Park shall hereafter be designated as Public Facilities District, 
as defined in the Fruitland Park Land Development Regulations.  The property is more particularly 
described as: 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See Exhibit A. 
 
Parcel Alternate Key No. 1639743 
 
and depicted in Exhibit B. 
 
Section 2. That the City Manager, or designee, is hereby directed to amend, alter, and 
implement the official zoning maps of the City of Fruitland Park, Florida to include said 
designation consistent with this Ordinance. 



 
 
 
Section 3.  That the zoning classification is consistent with the Comprehensive Plan of the City of 
Fruitland Park, Florida. 
 
Section 4.   If any provision or portion of this Ordinance is declared by any court of competent 
jurisdiction to be void, unconstitutional, or unenforceable, then all remaining provisions and 
portions of this Ordinance shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
Section 5.  Scrivener’s errors in the legal description may be corrected without a public hearing or 
at public meeting, by re-recording the original ordinance or a certified copy of the ordinance and 
attaching the correct legal description. 
 
Section 6.  That all ordinances or parts of ordinances in conflict herewith are hereby repealed. 
 
Section 7.  This Ordinance shall become effective in accordance with law. 
 
PASSED AND ORDAINED in regular session of the City Commission of the City of Fruitland 
Park, Lake County, Florida, this ______ day of ________, 2021. 
 
 
______________________________________ 
Chris Cheshire, Mayor 
City of Fruitland Park, Florida   
 
 
ATTEST:      Approved as to Form: 
 
 
_____________________________   ________________________________ 
Esther Coulson, CMC, City Clerk   Anita Geraci-Carver, City Attorney  
(SEAL) 
 
 
Mayor Cheshire  ____(Yes),  ____(No),  ____(Abstained), ____(Absent) 
Vice Mayor Gunter   ____(Yes),  ____(No),  ____(Abstained),  ____(Absent)  
Commissioner Bell  ____(Yes),  ____(No),  ____(Abstained),  ____(Absent)  
Commissioner DeGrave ____(Yes),  ____(No),  ____(Abstained),  ____(Absent) 
Commissioner Mobilian          (Yes),  ____(No),  ____(Abstained), ____ (Absent) 
 
 

Passed First Reading ___________ 
  
Passed Second Reading___________  

  



 
 

EXHIBIT A 
Legal Description 

 
 
Legal Description: 
From the SW corner of the SE 1/4 of Section 9, Township 19 South, Range 24 East, Lake 
County, Florida, run North 0°35’00” East along the West line of the SE 1/4 a distance of 
1029.53 feet, Thence South 89°28’30” East 26.51 feet to the SW corner of Lot 5, Block 
43, Town of Fruitland Park, Florida, and the Point of Beginning of this Description; Run 
Thence North 0°18’20” East885.44 feet, Thence South 89°51’30” East 941.02 feet, 
Thence South 30°16’00” East 298.55 feet, Thence North 89°51’30” West 125.60 feet, 
Thence South 0°30’10” West 634.41 feet, Thence North 89°28’30” West 965.10 feet to 
the POB, containing 20.00 acres. (ORB584, PG 477) 
LESS 
From the SW corner of the SE 1/4 of Section 9, Township 19 South, Range 24 East, Lake 
County, Florida, run North 0°35’00” East along the West line of the SE 1/4 a distance of 
1029.53 feet, Thence South 89°28’30” East 26.51 feet to the SW corner of Lot 5, Block 
43, Town of Fruitland Park, Florida, Thence North 0°18’20” East 760.44 feet to the POB 
of this Description; Run Thence North 0°18’20” East 125.00 feet, Thence South 89°51’30” 
East 250 feet along the South line of Mirror Lake Manor as recorded PB 23, PG 51 of 
Public Records of Lake County, Florida; Then South 00°08’30” West 125.00 feet, Thence 
North 89°51’30” West 250 feet to the POB. (ORB 5139, PG 2470) 
ALSO LESS 
Fruitland Park from SW corner of Lot 5, Block 43 run North 885.44 feet, South 89°51’30” 
East 250 feet to POB, Continue on same line 100 feet, South 00°08’30” West 125 feet, 
North 89°51’30” West 100 feet, North 00°08’30” East 125 feet to POB PB 3 PGS 8-9. 
(Lake County Property Appraiser) 
 
  



 
 

EXHIBIT B 
Map 



S I T E  M A S T E R  P L A N N I N G  F R U I T L A N D  P A R K  E L E M E N T A R Y August 16, 2021

Conceptual Site Plan

bus loop

tot
lot

youth
lot

courts

covered 
play

future

dry retention

field

field

parent drop

parent drop

Site Plan Information
Site Size: 18.96 Acres

Parking Spaces: 200

Car Stacking:
110 cars single stacked
205 cars double stacked

School Information
Two-Story Elementary

Administration

Media 

Multi-Purpose/Dining/Kitchen

Academics/Classrooms

ESE Programs

Art & Music Classrooms

Flex & Collaborative Learning 
Spaces

FRONT 
DOOR

service

U R I C K   S T R E E T

O
L

I
V

E
 

 
A

V
E

.

U R I C K
Mirror Lake 

Village

0’ 100’
north



  1 

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK 
STAFF REPORT BY LPG URBAN & REGIONAL PLANNERS, INC. 

 
REZONING AND SITE PLAN 

 
Owner:   School Board of Lake County  
 
Applicant: School Board of Lake County 
 
General Location: Northeast corner of the intersection of Urick Street and Olive 

Avenue 
 
Number of Acres: 19 Acres +/- 
 
Existing Zoning: R-1 (Single Family Low Density Residential) 
 
Proposed Zoning: Public Facilities District (PFD) 
 
Existing Land Use: Single Family Low Density (SFLD) 
 
Date: September 14, 2021 
 
Description of Project  
The request is to allow construction of a replacement elementary school and accessory uses on 
approximately 19 acres located on the northeast corner of the intersection of Urick Street and 
Olive Avenue. A rezoning application with an associated concept plan were filed by the 
property owner and applicant Lake County School Board. The applicant requests that the 
approximately 19 acres be rezoned from R-1, Single Family Low Density Residential to PFD, 
Public Facilities District to allow construction of a public elementary school to replace the 
existing elementary school.  
 
The surrounding uses are provided in Table 1. The surrounding area is primarily residential in 
nature, with planned and under construction communities coming online which will contribute 
to an increase in elementary aged students.  
 

 Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Land Use 
North R-1 SFLD 
South R-3 MFHD 
East PUD SFLD/SFMD 
West PFD/R1 INST/SFLD 

Table 1. Surrounding Property Uses 
 
 



  2 

 
 
 
 
Assessment 

 
Comprehensive Plan Consistency  
Policy 1-5.1 permits necessary public facilities as institutional land uses within any Future Land 
Use category provided that the facility serves a majority of the population; is located close to 
the main user group; and provides buffers as well as landscaping to protect and screen both 
existing and planned adjacent uses. Educational land uses are included in the definition of 
public facilities. Policy 1-5-3 further provides that schools built and operated by the Lake 
County School Board are allowed throughout the City except in areas designated for Industrial 
or Conservation.  
 
The subject site is of sufficient size to accommodate the elementary school and customary 
accessory uses. It will serve the elementary aged population of Fruitland Park and surrounding 
areas of Lake County, is located in reasonable proximity of all areas of the City, and the 
conceptual site plan shows buffering and landscaping. The buffers and landscaping are further 
reviewed below. The subject property is not located an industrial or conservation area. The 
Single Family Low Density Future Land Use designation permits the construction of the school 
as an allowed use consistent with Table 1.1, Policy 1-5.1 and 1-5.3. The applicant has provided 
the required materials to support the rezoning request from R-1 to PFD district.  
 
Rezoning 
LDC Section 154.030.d.1, R-1 single family low density zoning district does not permit 
construction of schools. The requested rezoning is necessary to allow for the construction of 
the new school. Pursuant to LDC Section 154.030 d.11, The PFD, public facilities zoning district 
permits educational institutions (i.e., schools). The PFD district does have locational criteria that 
must be met to permit development of any public facility which are outline below.  

i) The approved use shall front on an arterial or collector roadway. Sewage 
treatment facilities, water supply operations, electric power substations and 
operation centers and cemeteries are exempt from this requirement. 

The school does not front on an arterial or collector roadway. However, the 
school is a unique public facility. Schools are intended to serve the adjacent 
neighborhoods as delineated in Policy 1-5.1 and 1-5.3. The new school’s location 
is acceptable as existing and future growth in the surrounding area will generate 
a need for a better equipped and modern elementary school. Two recently 
approved residential development Hollway PUD and Tara Oaks have or will 
shortly begin construction. A projected 293 new student are expected at full 
building out of the communities.   

   



  3 

ii) Approved uses shall comply with appropriate landscaping and buffering 
requirements and access management requirements. 
The applicant intends to provide buffering and landscaping for the new school. 
Staff has requested additional details be added to the concept plan. 

 
iii) The site must be located in close proximity to the main user group. 

The new school is in proximity to an area experiencing growth and 293 students 
are expected from the two newly approved residential communities in the area.  

 
iv) The approved use must serve the majority of the population. 

The school will serve the entire school aged population of the City of Fruitland 
Park and the surrounding areas. 

The applicant has demonstrated compliance with the locational criteria for the Public Facilities 
Zoning District.  
 
Pursuant to LDC Section 152.040, subparagraph “e” the following review criteria must be 
considered by the Planning and Zoning Board and City Commission when reviewing an 
amendment.   
 

1) Consistency with the Comprehensive Plan, or in the case of a Plan amendment, 
consistency with the remainder of the Plan and its goal, objectives and policies. 
The applicant has provided competent evidence to support consistency with the 
goals, objectives, and policies of the Comprehensive Plan. The Single Family Low 
Density future land use permits the construction of public facilities. Policy 1-5.1 
defines educational land uses as public facilities and allows public facilities as 
institutional uses in any future land use category. Policy 1-5.3 permits schools 
owned and operated by Lake County School Board in all areas of the City with the 
exception of Industrial and Conservation Areas. The subject property is not in an 
industrial or conservation area and as such construction of a new elementary 
school is allowed on the subject property consistent with the existing future land 
use and Comprehensive Plan. 

 
Policy 1-5.3 further describes the conditions schools must meet:  
1) Facilities and services needed to meet the impacts of the school facility are 

available or will be provided by the School Board in accordance with the 
Comprehensive Plan Elements and CIE. 

 Central water and sewer facilities and capacity are available in the area to 
serve the new school. The applicant is proposing connection to central 
water and sewer consistent with this standard. 

    
2) Transportation facilities needed to serve access of buses are designed and 

constructed in a manner that can sustain the substantial impact of the school 
without the requirement of additional upgrades at the expense of the City.  



  4 

TPD’s traffic analysis identified two safety related improvements that will 
facilitate traffic to and around the new elementary site. See traffic analysis 
section for additional details. Applicant has demonstrated consistency with 
this standard.   

 
3) The scale and intensity of the host land use will be respected.  

The concept plan demonstrates the applicant’s understanding of the subject 
property and the surrounding area. The applicant is providing a large 
amount of open space and proposing buffering with the intention to 
maintain existing vegetation to the greatest extent possible. The design will 
allow for the school to blend with the existing neighborhood. The subject 
property will be fenced to protect students. The rezoning request is 
consistent with this standard. 

 
4) The City will be allowed to contribute to the review of the site design for new 

facilities, in order to avoid conflict with surrounding properties and existing 
City land development regulations.  
The applicant has provided a concept plan with reasonable level of detail 
which was reviewed against the City’s LDRS. Impacts on surrounding 
properties were considered in placement of the school and supporting 
infrastructure. Staff has provided some comments of additional items to 
include on the concept plan. The site design is generally consistent with the 
standard.  

 
5) The School Board is expected to accommodate City concerns over the design 

of access and impact of traffic on residential neighborhoods and will be 
encouraged to provide bicycle and pedestrian access at multiple points on 
campus. 
Staff has asked for additional details on bike parking. Vehicular traffic is 
sufficiently addressed by the traffic analysis. The application is consistent 
with this standard.   

 
6) Non-School facilities will be sited in land use categories allowing the specific 

activity of the intended use.  
Non-school facilities are not proposed with the rezoning application, so the 
request is consistent with this standard.  

 
7)  In recognition that the siting of a new school often draws additional 

development into the area, the School Board will choose new sites in a 
manner that compliments the City’s growth plans, maximizes the use of 
existing facilities and discourages urban sprawl.  

   The applicant has complied with this standard. The school is proposed in an 
area experiencing growth. The roadway system is adequate to 
accommodate the new school with two safety improvements recommended 



  5 

by the traffic study. Central water and sewer are available to serve the new 
school.  The rezoning request is consistent with the City’s growth plans. 

 
2) Consistency with applicable sections of the Land Development Code.  
 Staff is requesting some additional information be added to the concept plan. 

The proposal is generally consistent with the Land Development Code.  
 
3)  Additionally, as to rezoning amendments:  

 
A) Whether justified by changed or changing conditions.  

The rezoning request is justified by changing conditions in the county, 
city and in elementary education. The County and City have seen a rapid 
increase in population over the last ten years. With new residents, come 
more children. New home construction in the area is steadily increasing, 
providing the City with an increasing tax base and increasing need for 
more services.   
 
Technologically advances have progressed exponentially in the last 50 
years since the current elementary school was built. The existing 
elementary school has come to the end of the building’s life cycle. 
Changes in technology and educational theory have made the current 
facility obsolete. The applicant is seeking the rezoning to build a modern 
elementary school to replace the obsolete facility. The new school will 
allow the applicant to provide an improved educational experience for 
the elementary aged students residing in the City and surrounding 
areas.     

 
B) Whether adequate sites already exist for the proposed district uses.  

 The number of properties currently zoned public facilities is limited 
within the City. Generally, a rezoning is required to accommodate a 
public school or a new public facility. The subject property is of sufficient 
size to accommodate the school and the applicant has demonstrated 
consistency with the comprehensive plan and general compliance with 
the land development code. 

 
C) Whether specific requirements of the Land Development Code are 

adequate to insure compatibility with adjoining properties as required by 
the Comprehensive Plan. 

  Elementary schools are generally deemed a compatible use within a  
  residential neighborhood. Neighborhood design theory has espoused  
  the central location of schools within a neighborhood, since the early  
  1900’s. The main build block of a neighborhood, “the neighborhood  
  unit”, focused the neighborhood around a school. The school is deemed  



  6 

  an essential element of community centric neighborhood design. The  
  intent is to provide a school in short walking distance of a child’s home.  
 
  The applicant has provided sufficient evidence to deem the school  
  consistent with the Comprehensive Plan and generally compliant with  
  the Land Development Code. Buffers and landscaping are proposed to  
  assist the new school with blending into the neighborhood. The traffic  
  study concluded that with the traffic from the new school the existing  
  roads will continue to operate at an adequate level of service with  
  limited safety improvement required.  

 
The proposed rezoning is consistent with the review criteria of LDC Section 152.040, 
subparagraph “e”. Staff is supportive of the request rezoning. 
 
Traffic analysis 

Access to the site is provided from both Urick Street and Olive Avenue. The traffic analysis 
provided by TPD, Traffic Planning and Design, Inc. concludes that the proposed school will 
not adversely impact adjacent roadways or intersections. With the addition of the traffic 
from the school, TPD determined that the roadways will continue to operate within the 
adopted level of service standards. Table 1 summarizes the results of the projected traffic 
on the adjacent roadways. 
 

Roadway Segment Lanes Capacity Direction Existing 
Volume 

Existing 
LOS 

Project 
Volume 

Total 
Volume 

Projected 
LOS 

CR 466A to Pine 
Ridge Dairy Rd 

2 530 NB/EB 188 C 13 201 C 
SB/WB 189 C 11 200 C 

Pine Ridge Dairy Rd 
to Griffin Rd 

2 680 NB/EB 299 C 41 340 D 
SB/WB 315 C 50 365 D 

Griffin Rd to SR 44 2 620 NB/EB 430 C 37 467 C 
SB/WB 353 C 45 398 C 

CR 466A to US27/441 2 530 NB/EB 303 D 50 353 D 
SB/WB 265 C 41 306 D 

Table 1. Projected Roadway Capacity Analysis 
 
The bus loop and parent drop off is accessed from Olive Street. The bus loop is located in 
the northwest corner of the property with a separate entrance from Olive Avenue. The 
parent drop off is access from Olive Avenue via the main access point with traffic traveling 
west and south of the main school. Segregation of bus and passenger vehicle traffic will 
facilitate more orderly drop off and pick up at the new facility. The concept plan does not 
provide enough detail to determine if access spacing between proposed driveways meet 
County standards. Further detail will be provided at the time of site plan and may result in 
shifting of the access points. 
  



  7 

TPD completed an intersection analysis. The results concluded that intersections and site 
access driveways are projected to operate at a satisfactory level of service with the addition 
of the projected traffic. The intersection of Olive Avenue and Urick Street will serve the 
school’s main access point and was analyzed as an all way stop in lieu of the existing two 
way stop on the southbound approach on Olive Avenue. 
 
Two transportation improvements are recommended by the TPD traffic analysis; (1) an 
exclusive north bound turn lane at the intersection Urick Street and Olive Avenue to serve 
the main entrance and (2) site access to have an all way stop control in lieu of the existing 
two-way stop control on the southbound approach on Olive Street.   The proposed 
improvements are safety related and are consistent with Policy 1-5. that  
 “Transportation facilities needed to serve access of buses are designed and constructed in a 
 manner that can sustain the substantial impact of the school without the requirement of 
 additional upgrades at the expense of the City.”  

 
Environmental analysis 
An environmental analysis dated May 19, 2021 by Austin Environmental Consultants, Inc was 
submitted which evaluated the potential impacts to environmentally sensitive lands and listed 
species. The site does not contain any jurisdictional wetlands. Upland communities present on 
the property include open lands, upland hardwood forests, and hardwood-conifer mixed.  
 
No known eagle nests will be impacted by the development. A pedestrian survey found active 
and inactive gopher tortoise burrows within the property.  The environmental assessment 
advises prior to land development activities a 100% survey of all gopher tortoise habitat be 
performed and if necessary, permits secured through FFWCC.    
 
The property falls within the USFWS Consultation Area for Sand Skinks. An additional Sand 
Skink Survey was provided dated May 12, 2021, evaluating the potential presence of Sand 
Skinks. No evidence of sand skinks was observed during the Sand Skink survey, survey 
concludes the subject property does not contain occupied sand skink habitat.  
 
Conceptual plan review 
 
 Parking  

The applicant has provided 200 parking spaces on the concept plan. Staff cannot 
determine if that is sufficient for the proposed 1000 student elementary school. LDC 
Section 162.040 states parking shall be provided based on 1 space per staff member and 
1 space per 3 seats in largest assembly area. Staff requests additional details on the 
seating capacity of the largest assembly area and number of staff members for the 
elementary school.   
 
The concept plan does not show the complete parking layout so Staff cannot fully 
evaluate if the parking lot or parking lot landscaping designs are consistent with the 
LDC. Additional detail on parking lot layout, size of proposed parking spaces, width of 



  8 

access aisles would be required to fully analyze, if the applicant complies with Chapter 
162.   
 
A separate bus loop is provided in the northwest portion of the property. Car stacking 
for parent drop off and pick up is provided. If single stacking is utilized up to 110 vehicles 
can stack in the drop off area while if double stacking is utilized up to 205 vehicles can 
be accommodated. Without additional details on parking space size and width of the 
access aisle, Staff cannot completely evaluate if car stack is sufficient.    
A future parking area is delineated on the concept plan. Access to this parking area is 
from the bus loop. 
   

 Landscaping Review 
 Buffering and landscaping are provided. No details on buffer widths or design are 
 provided.  No details on tree preservation or mitigation were provided. Additional 
 details are needed for staff to determine if the concept plan meets the intent of Chapter 
 164. 
 
 
Review Comments: 

• Please add the percentage of open space and impervious surface ratio to the concept 
plan. 

• Please provide the seating capacity of the largest assembly area and the number of 
projected staff members so staff can determine that sufficient parking is provided. 

• Please provide bike parking. Elementary schools generate a need for bike parking. LDC 
Section 162.040 has a guideline of ½ a bike parking space for each required parking 
space.    

• Staff recommends providing additional details on parking lot design. Staff would like to 
verify that the parking and parent drop off can be accommodated as shown on the 
concept plan.  

• City is supportive of the buffers included on the concept plan and that existing 
vegetation will be maintained to the greatest extent possible. Please label the concept 
plan with the proposed buffer widths.   

• Staff cannot evaluate from the submitted materials, the impact of construction on 
existing trees. Please be advised that Chapter 164 provides the City’s guidance for tree 
removal and mitigation.  

• Please revise the traffic study to replace “Olive Street” with “Olive Avenue”. The 
document references the roadway by both names. The roadway name is “Olive 
Avenue”.  

 
Recommendation 

 
• Please revise the concept plan and traffic analysis as indicated above.  

 









���������� ������	
���	��������������	
�������	
���������

�		��������������������������������	
���	������� �	��
!�"#$""� ��%

&'(')*+,-(./)0*12/(

3*0'4
56789��:����;<
<�������

=+1')(*1',>'?4 �"#$""�

@*2+2(A
=BB)'CC4

�%%D��EF���$9G�E9
�H8�H8I�5��%%�$D

�JKLMNOPQMRSRTUPVLLWOXX

Y*)Z'+,3[0\')4,
%%��$��#������
������#��

@2++*A',&)/[],*(B,̂21?4
���5
_56789��:�
��6;̀

abcd,e/1*+,̂')12.2'B,@2++*A'
f*1'4

�"�D"$g

e)*Chif'Z?Z+2(Aij*1')i-(./4
QkPlmnSRoPpOWqRoOX
QMKP

Y)/]')1?
r/Z*12/(4

7E�GFs��"�##�
�56789��:����6;�5�

%#"%��
�JKLMNOPlWtKOWNkPutoMNRtT�

Y)/]')1?,3*0'4
��
�pmnvRNPlWtKOWNk
wMvOP

xZh//+,-(./)0*12/(4

poyttSPutoMNtWPzP{mX
pNtKPQMKP

PpoyttSP{tmTLMWk
QMKXP

Y)/]')1?
|'CZ)2]12/(4

9G�9���69�}5�:F���#�}5�:<���#�}5�:<���#��s8:~�F�}5�GFs��
�}6���#�g��~��#�}6��%g"$��~��#g���

�
3�e�4,eh2C,])/]')1?,B'CZ)2]12/(,2C,*,Z/(B'(C'Bi*\\)'�2*1'B,�')C2/(,/.,1h',/)2A2(*+,B'CZ)2]12/(,*C,)'Z/)B'B,/(,B''BC,/),/1h'),+'A*+,2(C1)[0'(1C,2(,1h',][\+2Z
)'Z/)BC,/.,1h',r*�',̂/[(1?,̂+')�,/.,̂/[)1�,-1,0*?,(/1,2(Z+[B',1h',Y[\+2Z,r*(B,x[)�'?,x?C1'0�C,x'Z12/(�,e/�(Ch2]�,f*(A',2(./)0*12/(,/),1h',Z/[(1?,2(,�h2Zh
1h',])/]')1?,2C,+/Z*1'B�,-1,2C,2(1'(B'B,1/,)'])'C'(1,1h',+*(B,\/[(B*)?,/(+?,*(B,B/'C,(/1,2(Z+[B','*C'0'(1C,/),/1h'),2(1')'C1C,/.,)'Z/)B�,eh2C,B'CZ)2]12/(,Ch/[+B
(/1,\',[C'B,./),][)]/C'C,/.,Z/(�'?2(A,])/]')1?,121+'�,eh',Y)/]')1?,=]])*2C'),*CC[0'C,(/,)'C]/(C2\2+21?,./),1h',Z/(C'�['(Z'C,/.,2(*]])/])2*1',[C'C,/)
2(1')])'1*12/(C,/.,1h',])/]')1?,B'CZ)2]12/(�

r*(B,|*1*

r2('r*(B,�C' �)/(1*A'|']1h3/1'C 3/�,�(21Ce?]' +̂*CC,�*+['r*(B,�*+['

� 98H�<6�E�8�"��_g#��̀ � � H~H9g�#� �� ��I������ �"�I%"����

+̂2Z�,h')',./),�/(2(A,-(./,, ��@=,�+//B,@*]

�

@2CZ'++*('/[C,-0])/�'0'(1C

eh')',2C,(/,20])/�'0'(1,2(./)0*12/(,1/,B2C]+*?�

x*+'C,�2C1/)?

������9�������	���������	���	������	������������	����������	�	��������	�������������������������������
�������	������	���������	
��������	��������������������������
����������	��	����������������	��5������	���������	������������������	���
��������������

�//�iY*A' x*+',|*1'-(C1)[0'(1 �[*+2.2'Bi�(�[*+2.2'B �*Z*(1i-0])/�'B x*+',Y)2Z'

%g"$����#g���%�����$������� H��	������� ���	 �������

�#�g����# ��%����% F���	
������������� ���	 �%"gI������

 SRo¡PyOWOPNtPXOMWoyP¢tWPvtWNUMUOX£PSROTX£PMTLPtNyOWPSOUMSPLtomvOTNX¤�

�*+['C,*(B,�C120*1'B,=B,�*+/)'0,e*¥'C,
�*+['C,Ch/�(,\'+/�,*)',abab,̂�fe-�-�|,�=r��x�

�9���H���	���������	��������������	���	������	����������	�	����	����	��������������������	���������	
�������������	�����������������
��
����������������	�	
��
���	�����	�������������	�����	������

e*¥,=[1h/)21?
@*)�'1
�*+['

=CC'CC'B
�*+['

e*¥*\+'
�*+['

@2++*A'
�C120*1'B
e*¥'C

��;<��}7:9s�����~<:<6��
57:�

�"�I%"� ��I��� ��I��� g��%�"� ���D"

��;<��}7:9s�HE97
�H�7��:�<

�"�I%"� ��I��� ��I��� ��#D��� ���$�

E�G}}���}�6��E9�9< �"�I%"� ��I��� ��I��� %�"���� �"���



���������� ������	
���	��������������	
�������	
���������

�		��������������������������������	
���	������� �	��
!�"#$""� ��%

&�'((��)(�*���(��� +"�,%"� +�,-�� +�,-�� ��--$�� +.�"/

�012�(3�3*401��5����*6 +"�,%"� +�,-�� +�,-�� %�-�%#� +"�.�

&1�7('5&�*089*�3��:�19*
;<;1��0&1

+"�,%"� +�,-�� +�,-�� ����$"� +��##

��69��(4512�8(19���9)1
&9*80�9

+"�,%"� +�,-�� +�,-�� ������� +����

��69��(4512�:�19*
�41'(*012

+"�,%"� +�,-�� +�,-�� ��%%/$� +��/.

5(*1'���69�'(&�01����0&1 +"�,%"� +�,-�� +�,-�� ��$-.�� +��"�

� � � �
=>?@AB
�"�/"$.

=>?@ABC+%%�-"

DEFGH?I>JKCLJM>NG@?I>J

=OIKCHN>HFN?PCIKCQFJFMI??IJRCMN>GC?OFCM>AA>SIJRCFEFGH?I>JKCSI?OC@CTOFTUG@NUCV

'����	���9����	����WX���	������	�������	��+�.,���Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

����	�����'����	���9����	����W���	�������	�����+�.,���Y� Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

����	���0������&������9����	����W�������	������	
�����g�������	�
+.�,���Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

����	���0������&������9����	����W�������	����	
�����g�������	��+�.,���Y�Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

����	���0������&�������.�2���*�������
�W����	
�����g�����
������	���
����	�h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

:�������:�������9����	����W���	��+.��Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

)�����9����	����W���	��+.��Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

���i���	
�9����	����W���	��+.��Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

1�	������������	����i���	
�9����	����W����	�h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

8�	���j�����i���	
�9����	����W+.���Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

8�	���j��1�	������������	����i���	
�9����	����W����	�h����Y� Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

8�	���j�����i	�*��	������i���	
�9����	����W����	�h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

�����
���&��h������i���9����	����W����	�h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d�

3���	�*���������1�	������������	����i���	
�9����	����W����	�h����YZ[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d�

&��h�h��g�&�������X�3���	�*���������9����	����W����	�h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

������h	����9����	����W����	�h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

1�g�i�����������������	
�9����	����W���	��+�.,���Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

*���g����,�����	i��,�0��	�	�	����,����(�g��k	�����9����	�����W����	
h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

9����������h�������	�9����	��� Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

<�h������	�9����	����W����	�h����Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

DEFGH?I>JCl@mIJRKC

=OFCFEFGH?I>JKCG@NUFnCSI?OC@CVC@Q>mFC@NFCHN>mInIJRC@C?@ECn>AA@NCK@mIJRKC>MBCopqpp

rKKFKKGFJ?CsFntT?I>JCLJM>NG@?I>JCuvwCT@HxCypwCT@HxCrRNITtA?tN@Ax
z>N?@QIAI?PxCF?Tq{

=OIKCHN>HFN?PCIKCQFJFMI??IJRCMN>GC?OFCM>AA>SIJRC@KKFKKGFJ?CNFntT?I>JKCSI?OC@

TOFTUG@NUCV

&h��(���'��������������	�����		����W%|���������h������Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

&h��(���'��������������	�1���X���W���	i���	
Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d

5���'����	������������	�����		����W��|���������h������Y Z[\]̂_̀a][bc[d_ef[_Z\d



���������� ������	
���	��������������	
�������	
���������

�		��������������������������������	
���	������� �	��
!�"#$""� %�%

�

���
��&�	�'����#���������	
�������	
�����������������&�	�������(���
�������	
��	���	����	������)��	��*���"+������

�,-./012.-3/
�

������(	���������4��	�������������	�����		��� 56789:;<86=>6?:@A6:57?

B �&�����	���������4��	��� 56789:;<86=>6?:@A6:57?

CDD/DDE/F.0G/HI3.-2F0,JK-FLD0

MN/0JDD/DDE/F.0O/HI3.-2FD0EJOP/H0Q-.N0J0B0JR2K/0JO/0SO2K-H-FL0J0.JT0H2UUJO
DJK-FLD02VW0XYZ[[\]\̂

_̀ abc�d�4���	�������	����������	
�e������������������������������*
�	�����������	
�������	
����������4���	�����������������4���(������������	
�	����������	
������	�	������������������	��	���f����������	�	�	���+�)		�	��+�����������	�	�(��������g�����������	
�������	
��������������������������		������������	���
��&����&�	���������	��������������
��4�	����	�������+��	�����������	�����		���+�	���4������*���4������h��	*���	�	���������������������*�������4�	���������	
+����������
�����*���	
������	�����	���	�����������������)���	������	���)�	��i�	����

�



















Legal Description: 

THAT PART OF THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 
18 SOUTH, RANGE 24 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA LYING WEST OF THE HIGHWAY, LESS AND EXCEPT RAILROAD 
RIGHT-OF-WAY.  

TOGETHER WITH THAT PORTION OF THE LANDS DESCRIBED IN THAT FINAL JUDGEMENT QUIETING TITLE 
RECORDED IN OFFICIAL RECORDS BOOK 3578, PAGE 2451 OF THE PUBLIC RECORDS OF LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, 
LYING WITHIN THE NORTHWEST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF THE NORTHEAST 1/4 OF SECTION 33, TOWNSHIP 
18 SOUTH, RANGE 24 EAST, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, LYING WEST OF THE HIGHWAY. 











 

Lake County P roperty Appraiser
Lake BCC

County Boundary
Street Names
Local Streets
Subdivision Lot Numbers
Address Locations
Property Name
Tax Parcels Alternate Key
Tax Parcels
Surrounding Counties

October 12, 2020
0 0.045 0.090.0225 mi

0 0.07 0.140.035 km

1:1,998

Lake County Board of County Commissioners
 

SITE



T.O. FINISH FLOOR
0' - 0"

B.O. CANOPY
10' - 0"
B.O. CANOPY (SIDE)
8' - 6"

T.O. PARAPET (HIGH)
22' - 0"
T.O. SIP (OVER-BUILD)
21' - 8"

1 2 1 11

F
C

-1

F
C

-2

F
C

-2

M
T

-3

F
C

-1

S
-1

S
-1

M
T

-4

M
T

-2

F
C

-2

1 2

1

F
C

-2

F
C

-2

F
C

-2

M
T

-1

M
T

-1

F
C

-1

F
C

-1

M
T

-3

S
-1

M
T

-4

M
T

-2

S
-1

F
C

-2

1

1

F
C

-2

F
C

-1

M
T

-1

1 1

P
-3

M
T

-1

M
T

-1

F
C

-2

F
C

-2

F
C

-2

F
C

-1

S
-1

M
T

-2

M
T

-2

P
-3

P
-3

7
-E

L
E

V
E

N
, 
IN

C
3
2
0
0
 H

A
C

K
B

E
R

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

, 
IR

V
IN

G
, 
T

E
X

A
S

 7
5
0
6
3

J
O

B
 #

:

D
A

T
E

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
C

A
L
E

:

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 A

/E
 

F
ir
m

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 o

n
ly

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 u
s
e
 

fo
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 in

te
n
d
e
d
. 
 A

n
y
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
u
s
e
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
b
y
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
r 

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

y
, 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
, 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 
o
f 
A

/E
 F

ir
m

 i
s
 

d
o
n
e
 a

t 
th

e
 u

s
e
r'
s
 o

w
n
 r

is
k.

  
If
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
, 
u
s
e
r 

w
ill

 
h
o
ld

 A
/E

 F
ir
m

 h
a
rm

le
s
s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
s
e
s
.

PROTO: 2-23-2021 

SEI 2.0

P
R
ELI

M
IN

A
R
Y 

D
R
A
W

IN
G
S 

SHEET:

D
E
S
IG

N
 

D
E
V
E
LO

P
M
E
N
T 

N
O
T 

FO
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
T
IO

N
 

1
/4

" 
=

 1
'-
0

"

A3.2

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u
m

b
e
r

Is
s
u
e

 D
a
te

A
u
th

o
r

C
h
e
c
k
e
r

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 1
7
0
 &

 H
W

Y
 3

7
7

W
E

S
T

L
A

K
E

, 
T

X
 7

6
2
6
2

7
-

E
L

E
V

E
N

 -
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
, 

T
X

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 C

O
L

O
R

E
D

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

1/4" = 1'-0"
4

FRONT (EAST) ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

LEFT (SOUTH) ELEVATION
1/4" = 1'-0"

1
RIGHT (NORTH) ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"
3

REAR (WEST) ELEVATION

EXTERIOR MATERIALS SCHEDULE
CODE DESCRIPTION COLOR MANUFACTURER MODEL COMMENTS

FIBER CEMENT PANEL

FC-1 FIBER CEMENT PANELS -
VINTAGEWOOD

CEDAR NICHIHA AWP 3030 VERTICAL INSTALLATION

FC-2 FIBER CEMENT PANELS -
INDUSTRIALBLOCK

GRAY NICHIHA AWP 3030 HORIZONTAL
INSTALLATION

FC-3 FIBER CEMENT PANELS ENDURING
BRONZE

JAMES HARDIE SMOOTH
HARDIEPANEL

PANELS TO BE FACTORY
PRIMED AND FIELD
PAINTED SW7055

METAL

MT-1 PRE-FINISHED METAL
COPING & COMPRESSION
EDGE

MEDIUM
BRONZE

DURO-LAST DURO-LAST
#6052 & #3110

20 GA. PREFIINISHED
METAL PARAPET CAP

MT-2 PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM
CANOPY

BLACK MAPES
ARCHITECTURAL
CANOPIES

SUPER
LUMIDECK
FLAT SOFFIT

FINISH TO MATCH
SHERWIN WILLIAMS
TRICORN BLACK SW6258

MT-3 PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM
CANOPY

ORANGE MAPES
ARCHITECTURAL
CANOPIES

CUSTOM
SUPER
LUMIDECK
FLAT SOFFIT
WITH VERTICAL
LEG AND
INTERNAL
DRAINAGE

MT-4 BRAKE METAL TO MATCH
STOREFRONT

DARK BRONZE BY G.C.

PAINT

P-3 EXTERIOR HM DOORS,
FRAMES, TRASH
ENCLOSURE GATE.
DOWNSPOUTS, LIGHTS
POLES AND ROOF
LADDER.

ENDURING
BRONZE

SHERWIN
WILLIAMS

SW7055 SEE PAINT SCHEDULE
FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

P-8 PAINTED CMU GRAY
CLOUDS

SHERWIN
WILLIAMS

SW7658 SEE PAINT SCHEDULE
FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

P-10 PAINTED CMU - ACCENT ENDURING
BRONZE

SHERWIN
WILLIAMS

SW7055 SEE PAINT SCHEDULE
FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

ROOFING

MR-1 MEMBRANE ROOFING
SYSTEM

WHITE DUROLAST WHITE 40MIL
SINGLE-PLY
PVC ROOFING
MEMBRANE

STOREFRONT

S-1 ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
FRAMING

DARK BRONZE KAWNEER 451T VG

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
D

a
te

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
D

a
te



T.O. SLAB

REF. CIVIL

S.S. HANDLE S.S. HANDLE

5/8" X 24" S.S. 
CANE BOLT AT 
EACH GATE. 

T.O. CMU WALL

7'-4"

P
-3

5/8" X 24" S.S. 
CANE BOLT AT 
EACH GATE. 

P
-3

P
-8

P
-1

0

P
-8

P
-1

0

P
-1

0

P
-8

P
-1

0

P
-1

0

2" CMU TOP CAP

P
-8

P
-1

0

P
-1

0

P
-3

2" CMU TOP CAP

STREET SIDE STORE SIDE

P
-8

P
-1

0

P
-1

0

STORE SIDE STREET SIDE

P
-8

P
-1

0

P
-1

0

7
-E

L
E

V
E

N
, 

IN
C

3
2
0
0
 H

A
C

K
B

E
R

R
Y

 R
O

A
D

, 
IR

V
IN

G
, 
T

E
X

A
S

 7
5
0
6
3

J
O

B
 #

:

D
A

T
E

:

D
R

A
W

N
 B

Y
:

C
H

E
C

K
E

D
 B

Y
:

S
C

A
L
E

:

D
o
c
u
m

e
n
ts

 p
re

p
a
re

d
 b

y
 A

/E
 

F
ir
m

 a
re

 t
o
 b

e
 u

s
e
d
 o

n
ly

 f
o
r 

th
e
 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

 p
ro

je
c
t 
a
n
d
 s

p
e
c
if
ic

 u
s
e
 

fo
r 

w
h
ic

h
 t
h
e
y
 a

re
 in

te
n
d
e
d
. 
 A

n
y
 

e
x
te

n
s
io

n
 o

f 
u
s
e
 t
o
 o

th
e
r 

p
ro

je
c
ts

, 
b
y
 o

w
n
e
r 

o
r 

a
n
y
 o

th
e
r 

p
a
rt

y
, 
w

it
h
o
u
t 
th

e
 e

x
p
re

s
s
e
d
, 

w
ri
tt
e
n
 c

o
n
s
e
n
t 
o
f 
A

/E
 F

ir
m

 i
s
 

d
o
n
e
 a

t 
th

e
 u

s
e
r'
s
 o

w
n
 r

is
k.

  
If
 

u
s
e
d
 i
n
 a

 w
a
y
 o

th
e
r 

th
a
n
 t
h
a
t 

s
p
e
c
if
ic

a
lly

 i
n
te

n
d
e
d
, 
u
s
e
r 

w
ill

 
h
o
ld

 A
/E

 F
ir
m

 h
a
rm

le
s
s
 f
ro

m
 a

ll 
c
la

im
s
 a

n
d
 l
o
s
s
e
s
.

PROTO: 2-23-2021 

SEI 2.0

P
R
ELI

M
IN

A
R
Y 

D
R
A
W

IN
G
S 

SHEET:

D
E
S
IG

N
 

D
E
V
E
LO

P
M
E
N
T 

N
O
T 

FO
R
 

C
O
N
S
TR

U
C
T
IO

N
 

A
s
 i
n

d
ic

a
te

d

A3.3

P
ro

je
c
t 

N
u
m

b
e
r

Is
s
u
e

 D
a
te

A
u
th

o
r

C
h
e
c
k
e
r

S
T

A
T

E
 H

W
Y

 1
7
0
 &

 H
W

Y
 3

7
7

W
E

S
T

L
A

K
E

, 
T

X
 7

6
2
6
2

7
-

E
L

E
V

E
N

 -
W

E
S

T
L

A
K

E
, 

T
X

E
X

T
E

R
IO

R
 C

O
L

O
R

E
D

 E
L

E
V

A
T

IO
N

S

EXTERIOR MATERIALS SCHEDULE
CODE DESCRIPTION COLOR MANUFACTURER MODEL COMMENTS

FIBER CEMENT PANEL

FC-1 FIBER CEMENT PANELS -
VINTAGEWOOD

CEDAR NICHIHA AWP 3030 VERTICAL INSTALLATION

FC-2 FIBER CEMENT PANELS -
INDUSTRIALBLOCK

GRAY NICHIHA AWP 3030 HORIZONTAL
INSTALLATION

FC-3 FIBER CEMENT PANELS ENDURING
BRONZE

JAMES HARDIE SMOOTH
HARDIEPANEL

PANELS TO BE FACTORY
PRIMED AND FIELD
PAINTED SW7055

METAL

MT-1 PRE-FINISHED METAL
COPING & COMPRESSION
EDGE

MEDIUM
BRONZE

DURO-LAST DURO-LAST
#6052 & #3110

20 GA. PREFIINISHED
METAL PARAPET CAP

MT-2 PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM
CANOPY

BLACK MAPES
ARCHITECTURAL
CANOPIES

SUPER
LUMIDECK
FLAT SOFFIT

FINISH TO MATCH
SHERWIN WILLIAMS
TRICORN BLACK SW6258

MT-3 PRE-FINISHED ALUMINUM
CANOPY

ORANGE MAPES
ARCHITECTURAL
CANOPIES

CUSTOM
SUPER
LUMIDECK
FLAT SOFFIT
WITH VERTICAL
LEG AND
INTERNAL
DRAINAGE

MT-4 BRAKE METAL TO MATCH
STOREFRONT

DARK BRONZE BY G.C.

PAINT

P-3 EXTERIOR HM DOORS,
FRAMES, TRASH
ENCLOSURE GATE.
DOWNSPOUTS, LIGHTS
POLES AND ROOF
LADDER.

ENDURING
BRONZE

SHERWIN
WILLIAMS

SW7055 SEE PAINT SCHEDULE
FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

P-8 PAINTED CMU GRAY
CLOUDS

SHERWIN
WILLIAMS

SW7658 SEE PAINT SCHEDULE
FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

P-10 PAINTED CMU - ACCENT ENDURING
BRONZE

SHERWIN
WILLIAMS

SW7055 SEE PAINT SCHEDULE
FOR ADDITIONAL
INFORMATION

ROOFING

MR-1 MEMBRANE ROOFING
SYSTEM

WHITE DUROLAST WHITE 40MIL
SINGLE-PLY
PVC ROOFING
MEMBRANE

STOREFRONT

S-1 ALUMINUM STOREFRONT
FRAMING

DARK BRONZE KAWNEER 451T VG

3/8" = 1'-0"
7

FRONT TRASH ENCL. ELEVATION
3/8" = 1'-0"

6
REAR TRASH ENCL. ELEVATION

3/8" = 1'-0"
5

SIDE TRASH ENCL. ELEVATION

1/4" = 1'-0"
1

WINGED FUEL CANOPY - WEST

1/4" = 1'-0"
2

WINGED FUEL CANOPY - NORTH
1/4" = 1'-0"

4
WINGED FUEL CANOPY - SOUTH

1/4" = 1'-0"
3

WINGED FUEL CANOPY - EAST

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
D

a
te

N
o
.

D
e
s
c
ri

p
ti
o

n
D

a
te

3
'-

0
"

1
6

'-
5

 1
/2

"

L
O

W
E

S
T

 P
O

IN
T

 O
F

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 A
B

O
V

E
 S

L
A

B

1
4

-6
" 

C
L

R
 M

IN
 T

O
L

O
W

E
S

T
 P

O
IN

T
 O

F
 C

A
N

O
P

Y
 A

B
O

V
E

 S
L

A
B

1
4

-6
" 

C
L

R
 M

IN
 T

O

1
6

'-
5

 1
/2

"
3

'-
0

"

L
O

W
E

S
T

 P
O

IN
T

 O
F

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 A
B

O
V

E
 S

L
A

B

1
4

-6
" 

C
L

R
 M

IN
 T

O

1
6

'-
5

 1
/2

"
3

'-
0

"

3
'-

0
"

1
6

'-
5

 1
/2

"

L
O

W
E

S
T

 P
O

IN
T

 O
F

 C
A

N
O

P
Y

 A
B

O
V

E
 S

L
A

B

1
4

-6
" 

C
L

R
 M

IN
 T

O

3

4



RESOLUTION 2021-XX 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 
FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA, GRANTING MAJOR SITE PLAN 
APPROVAL WITH CONDITIONS TO ALLOW FOR 
CONSTRUCTION OF A SEVEN-ELEVEN; PROVIDING FOR 
CONDITIONS; AUTHORIZING THE CITY MANAGER TO ISSUE 
A NOTICE OF SITE PLAN APPROVAL UPON COMPLETION OF 
ALL CONDITIONS; AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, Fruitland Park Ella, LLC and R.K.M. Development Corp. has filed an 
application for Major Site Plan Approval to allow for construction of a new Seven-Eleven 
building on real property located at xxxx US Hwy 27/441, Fruitland Park; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Planning and Zoning Board of the City of Fruitland Park has considered 
the application in accordance with the Land Development Regulations for Major Site Plan 
Approval in Chapter 160 of the Land Development Regulations; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Commission of the City of Fruitland Park has considered the 
application in accordance with the Land Development Regulations for Major Site Plan 
Approval in Chapter 160 of the Land Development Regulations, subject to conditions; 
 
NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY COMMISSION OF THE 
CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK, LAKE COUNTY, FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 
Section 1. Granting of Major Site Plan Approval. 
 
The application filed by Fruitland Park Ella, LLC and R.K.M. Development Corp. 
(hereafter referred to as “Applicant”), to allow for construction of a new Seven-Eleven 
building on real property located at xxxx US Hwy 27/441, Fruitland Park is hereby 
GRANTED, with conditions, for the following described property: 
 
Alt. Key Numbers: 274770 
Parcel Id. Numbers:  33-18-24-0001-000-00400 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: See attached Exhibit A. 
 
Section 2. Conditions of Approval. 
 
(1) Prior to the issuance of a building permit, the Applicant shall resolve, to the 

satisfaction of the City Manager or designee, the following matters: 
(a) Applicant must obtain a driveway permit from FDOT for 

connection of the Property to US Hwy 27/441. 
(b) Applicant must dedicate and convey by right-of-way deed to Lake 

County right-of-way for Lake Ella Road. Applicant must prepare 



Resolution 2021-XX 
Page 2 of 3 

and provide to Lake County the legal description and sketch of 
description of the right-of-way as determined by Lake County, 
along with a copy of the Property boundary survey and title report. 

(c) Applicant must cooperate with FDOT and Lake County for the 
traffic signal modification at the intersection of US Hwy 27/441 
and Lake Ella Road, and execute any required agreements relating 
to same. 

(d) Construction of the building must include a fire sprinkler system.  
(e) If the canopy over the gas pumps is connected to the building, the 

canopy must include fire sprinklers. Alternatively, if the canopy 
does not connect to the building, then fire sprinklers will not be 
required.  

(2) Site plan approval shall terminate and become null and void automatically without 
notice if construction has not commenced within twelve (12) months from the date 
of this conditioned approval. 
 

(3) The Site Plan is attached hereto and incorporated herein. 
 

(4) Upon compliance with the conditions set forth above, the City Manager is 
authorized to issue and record a Notice of Site Plan Approval in the public records 
of Lake County, Florida. 

 
Section 3. Effective Date. 
 
This resolution shall become effective immediately upon its passage. 
 
PASSED and ADOPTED at a regular meeting of the City Commission of the City of 
Fruitland Park, Lake County, Florida this _______ day of _____________, 2021. 
 
 
SEAL CITY COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF 

FRUITLAND PARK, FLORIDA 
 
 
     _______________________________________ 
     CHRIS CHESHIRE, MAYOR 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
ESTHER COULSON, CITY CLERK 
 
  



Resolution 2021-XX 
Page 3 of 3 

Mayor Cheshire    (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Vice Chairman Gunter   ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Commissioner DeGrave ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Commissioner Mobilian ____ (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
Commissioner Bell   (Yes),    (No),    (Abstained),    (Absent) 
 

 

Approved as to form: 

 
  
Anita Geraci-Carver, City Attorney 



  1 

CITY OF FRUITLAND PARK 
STAFF REPORT BY LPG URBAN & REGIONAL PLANNERS, INC. 

 
SITE PLAN 

 
Owner:   Fruitland Lake Ella LLC 
 
Applicant:  Bill Lloyd of 441 Lake Ella, LLC 
 
General Location: West of US Highway 27/441 & Eagle Nest Road 
 
Number of Acres:   2.32 ± acres  
 
Existing Zoning:   C-2 
 
Existing Land Use:   Mixed Community (MC) 
 
Date:     August 4, 2021 
 
Description of Project 
 
The subject property is part of a larger tract of land (5.49 acres) and a lot split will need to be 
processed simultaneously with the site plan.  The proposed plan is to construct a 4,650 SF 7-11 
with associated 980 SF car wash, gas pumps and canopy, parking and stormwater management.  
 
 

 Surrounding Zoning Surrounding Land Use 
North C-2 Commercial – High Intensity 
South C-2 Mixed Community 
East C-2 Lake County Urban Medium 
West PUD Mixed Community 

 

 
 
Assessment 

 
The applicant has addressed all outstanding planning comments.  
  
Review of the architectural plans submitted indicate that it meets Section 154.070. 
 
Recommendation 

 



  2 

The site plan meets the minimum planning technical requirements of Chapter 160, Section 
160.080 and staff recommends approval subject to engineering approval. Applicant 
acknowledges that a separate sign permit will be required. 



  
 

 

 

 
VIA EMAIL dwilliams@fruitlandpark.org  
 
September 13, 2021 
 
Dwayne Williams 
Community Development Director 
City of Fruitland Park 
506 W. Berckman Street 
Fruitland Park, FL 34731 
 
RE: 7-ELEVEN (HALFF AVO #043866.070) 
 MAJOR SITE PLAN RAI #2 REVISED 
 
Dear Mr. Williams: 
 
I have reviewed the plans and calculations submitted on August 30, 2021.  As discussed with 
public works, the only remaining comment is that the site will need alternate forms of fire 
protection as the site cannot meet the required fire flow.  As the City of Fruitland Park does not 
provide fire protection services, I recommend conditional approval provided the applicant 
coordinate with Lake County Fire to provide needed fire protection prior to beginning construction. 
 
Should you have any questions, please feel free to contact our office. 
 
Sincerely, 
 
HALFF 

 
Brett J. Tobias, P.E. 
Team Leader 
btobias@halff.com  
 
BJT:am 
 
 
 
 
 

mailto:dwilliams@fruitlandpark.org
mailto:btobias@halff.com

	2021-03-08 Construction Plans.pdf
	C000 COVER SHEET
	C000 COVER SHEET

	C001 GENERAL NOTES
	C001 GENERAL NOTES

	C002 EXISTING CONDITIONS-DEMO PLAN
	C002 EXISTING CONDITIONS-DEMO PLAN

	C100 SITE PLAN
	C100 SITE PLAN

	C200 GRADING PLAN
	C200 GRADING PLAN

	C300 EROSION CONTROL PLAN
	C300 EROSION CONTROL PLAN

	C301 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
	C301 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

	C302 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS
	C302 EROSION CONTROL DETAILS

	C400 UTILITY PLAN
	C400 UTILITY PLAN

	C401 OFFSITE UTILITY PLAN
	C401 OFFSITE UTILITY PLAN

	C402 LIFT STATION PLAN
	C402 LIFT STATION PLAN

	C500 LANDSCAPE PLAN
	C500 LANDSCAPE PLAN

	C600 DETAILS
	C600 DETAILS

	C601 DETAILS
	C601 DETAILS

	C602 DETAILS
	C602 DETAILS

	C603 DETAILS
	C603 DETAILS


	2021-03-05 - 7 Eleven - A3.2 EXTERIOR COLORED ELEVATIONS.pdf
	Sheets
	A3.2 - EXTERIOR COLORED ELEVATIONS
	A3.3 - EXTERIOR COLORED ELEVATIONS


	2021-03-05 - 7 Eleven - A3.3 EXTERIOR COLORED ELEVATIONS.pdf
	Sheets
	A3.2 - EXTERIOR COLORED ELEVATIONS
	A3.3 - EXTERIOR COLORED ELEVATIONS





